City of Geneva, Illinois
Local Historic District & Landmarks
Property Inventory Survey

GENERAL PROPERTY INFORMATION:

PROPERTY ADDRESS:

102 South Second Street

PARCEL IDENTIFICATION NUMBER (PIN):

12-03-453-010

HISTORIC NAME: Unitarian Church

COMMON NAME: Unitarian Universalist Society of Geneva

DATE OF CONSTRUCTION: 1843, 1874

SIGNIFICANT ALTERATION DATES: 1955-1956, 1989

ARCHITECT: Brownson & Conterato (1955-56 Addition)

BUILDER: Howard and Smart

WILSON BROTHERS: [ AUGUST [ OSCAR [ BOTH

ARCHITECTURAL DATA:

ARCHITECTURAL STYLE: Early Classical Revival, Italiante

OVERALL PLAN SHAPE: Complex

LOCAL SIGNIFICANCE RATING:

NUMBER OF STORIES: 1

[w] significant

FOUNDATION MATERIAL: Parged

|:| Contributing

PRIMARY WALL MATERIAL(S): Stone-River

|:| Non-Contributing — Built After 1987

|:| Non-Contributing — Reversible Alterations

FRONT PORCH: Entry

|:| Non-Contributing — Irreversible Alterations

VISIBLE SIDE PORCH: N/A

HISTORIC DISTRICT LOCATION:

ENTRY DOOR(S): Historic

IE Central Geneva NRHD

WINDOW MATERIAL: Wood, Clad

|:| North Geneva NRHD

WINDOW STYLE: Stained Glass, Tall Picture Window

|E| Local Geneva HD

PRIMARY ROOF FORM: Gabled, Revival Steeple

|:| Not in HD / Individual Historic Landmark

PRIMARY ROOF MATERIAL: Asphalt

NR DISTRICT SIGNIFICANCE RATING:

VISIBLE CHIMNEY: N/A

|E| Contributing

|:| Non-Contributing

CHIMNEY MATERIAL: N/A

|:| Not Applicable / Not in NR District

OTHER SIGNIFICANT ARCHITECTURAL FEATURES:

HPC ACTION:

|:| Demolition Approved:

Other HPC Action: 3 16.04 Restoration, Windows,
Bell Tower; 6.21.05
Renovation; 2.20.07 Roof
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City of Geneva, Illinois
Local Historic District & Landmarks
Property Inventory Survey

ADDITIONAL PROPERTY INFORMATION:

PROPERTY ADDRESS:

102 South Second Street

BRIEF HISTORICAL DESCRIPTION:

The Unitarian Universalist Church, located at 102 South Second
Street, was constructed in 1843 using rubble stone from a nearby
quarry northeast of the bridge, later covered with cement plaster. A
bell was added in 1846, although the date of the belfry's installation
remains unclear. A clapboard vestibule was added around
1880-1892, while the front doors were reportedly installed in 1855,
although no documentation confirms this date. The vestibule was
further modified in 1874, at which time the original front doors were
relocated. These doors remain a character-defining feature of the
building, though years of repair have led to the original stained finish
being painted over to conceal extensive repairs and caulking.

In 1955, ground was broken for an addition designed by architects
Jacques C. Brownson and Bruno P. Conterato, with local contractor
John B. Christensen overseeing the project, valued at $13,900
(HABS). This modern, minimalist one-story wing, made of concrete
block, was dedicated in 1956 and wrapped around the historic west

SOURCES:

GHPC Case Studies; GHM Archives; 2016 Central North Geneva NRHP Update; 1869

Bird's Eye View of Geneva; Sanborn Fire Insurance Maps; Kane County Recorder's

Office Land Records; Geneva, lllinois: A History of Its Times and Places; Geneva,
inois: 150 Reminders of 150 Years: Historic American Buildinas Survey

CONTRIBUTING ACCESSORY STRUCTURES:

AS1 GENERAL DESCRIPTION:

AS2 GENERAL DESCRIPTION:

CONTRIBUTING LANDSCAPE FEATURES:

GENERAL DESCRIPTION:
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